ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. 	 WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN GRANTING 
RESPONDENT GEBHARDT'S MOTION TO DISMISS AS ASANCTION FORSERIOUS 
LITIGATION MISCONDUCT AND SPOLIATION OF EVIDENCE BY PETITIONERS 
AND PETITIONERS' COUNSEL AND DISMISSINGmE CASE AGAINST NOT ONLY 
RESPONDENT GEBHARDT, BUT ALSO RESPONDENTS MICHAEL COYNE AND 
TRIPLE S&D, INC., WHO TOOK NO POSITION ON THE MOTION TO DISMISS 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

L 	 PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

On September 27, 2013, Petitioners' filed their Complaint regarding the construction of their 

home against general contractor, Respondent Robert Todd Gebhardt, supplier Lumber Liquidators, 

LLC and unknowns identified as "John Doe and John Doe Contracting." The Complaint was 

amended twice and Respondents, Michael Coyne and Triple S& D, Inc., who laid the bricks for the 

home, took the places ofJohn Doe and John Doe Contracting. Appendix Vol 1, pg43,129 398, 496. 

On September 21,2015, Respondent, Robert Todd Gebhardt, filed 47 motions relevant to 

this appeal consisting of 5 Motions in Limine and Motion for Sanctions regarding Petitioners 

experts, a Motion in Limine on 1 expert, a Motion to Strike 1 expert, an Omnibus Motion iIi Limine 

with 34 sub-parts, 5 Motions for Summary Judgment on theories ofliability and a Motion to Dismiss 

based on spoliation. Appendix Vol 1, pg 722-1046. 

On September 21, 2015, Respondents, Michael Coyne and Triple S&D, Inc. , filed 12 

Motions with the Trial Court, relevant to this appeal joining in nine (9) of Respondent Gebhardt's 

motions and 2 separate Motions in Limine. Appendix Vol 1, pg 597-633. 

On October 16,2015, a Pre-Trial Conference was had and arguments made on the various 

motions. On Wednesday, October 28, 2015, the Trial Court emailed a postponement of the trial 

set for Monday, November 2,2015, due to the "volume of pre-trial motions, responses, exhibits 

and expert testimony for the Court to address..." 
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Over the next year the Trial Court entered various pretrial Orders on the Motions filed, none 

of which mentioned any serious litigation misconduct or sanctions other than limiting expert 

testimony, excluding some evidence and considering adverse inference jury instruction. Appendix 

Vol 1, pg 54-124. 

On November 4,2016, a second Pre-Trial Conference was had. Appendix 2, pg 2235. 

On November 8, 2016, Respondent Robert Todd Gebhardt was served with a trial subpoena 

issued by Petitioners' counsel by a professional process server, John Dan Livingston of J. D. ' s Paper 

Service, requesting that Mr. Gebhardt bring"receipts for gravel applied to the basement floor...before 

the concrete was poured" for the pt day of trial set for November 14,2016. Appendix Vol I, pg 

1925. 

On November 9, 2016, Respondent Robert Todd Gebhardt's counsel served the parties and 

the Trial Court with a Motion to Dismiss alleging litigation misconduct including misconductrelated 

to the trial subpoena of Respondent Gebhardt as "harassment and intimidation of a key party

defendant" and "witness tampering." Appendix Vol 1, pg 1864. 

On November 10,2016, the Trial Court emailed all counsel indicating it took the allegations 

in the Motion to Dismiss "very seriously", that the trial for Monday, November 14, 2016, was 

postponed and that an evidentiary hearing would be had on Tuesday, November 15,2016. 

At the evidentiary hearing Petitioners, Terri Smith and Kenneth Smith, and Respondent 

Robert Todd Gebhardt testified. Respondent Gebhardt denied being harassed, intimidated or 

threatened by Mr. Livingston who served the trial subpoena on him. Appendix Vol 2, pg 2411, lines 

5-23. Respondents, Michael Coyne and Triple S&D, Inc., by counsel, declared that they "did not 

take any position on the Motion" to Dismiss. Appendix Vol 1, pg 2322, lines 10-11. 

On February 3, 2017, the Trial Court granted Responde!lt Gebhardt's Motion to Dismiss, 
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dismissed the case against Respondent Gebhardt and also dismissed the case against Respondents, 

Michael Coyne and Triple S&D, Inc. Appendix Vol 1, pg 1-27. 

On March 3,2017, Petitioners timely filed their Notice ofAppeal. Appendix Vol 2, pg1969. 

II. 	 STATEMENT OF FACTS 

Petitioners contracted with Respondent Robert Todd Gebhardt (hereinafter "Respondent 

Gebhardt"), on July 13, 2009, to build a home for them in Ohio County, West Virginia for 

$201,400.00. Appendix Vol 1, pgI49-152. The home was a single story design on a cement block 

foundation with a concrete basement floor, plus an attached two (2) car garage without any 

basement. Petitioners contracted with Respondent Gebhardt to finish 546 square feet ofthe concrete 

block basement with dry wall and ceiling for a recreation room, hallway and ~ bath powder room 

for an additional $21,700.00, leaving 2 small rooms with unfInished concrete block walls. Appendix 

Vol 1, pg 153. With "add ins" Petitioners paid Respondent Gebhardt a total of $226,102.23. 

Appendix Vol 1, pg 130, 175. 

Petitioners provided brick to be utilized on the exterior of the home for an average 3 feet 

high brick veneer wall around bottom of the walls. Vinyl siding was applied to the remaining part 

of the walls extending up to the roof. Appendix Vol 3, pg 3168, Gebhardt depo. lines 1 0-11. There 

are photographs of house showing brick and siding. Appendix Vol 5, pg 5317-5329. 

Less than four (4) months after Petitioners moved into their home Petitioner Terri Smith 

gave Respondent Gebhardt a list of questions and concerns dated January 22, 2010, which started 

with the question, "Why is the block in basement back room wet."Appendix Vol 1, pg 296. 

Respondent Gebhardt knew of and tried to fix it the water infIltration for 3 years after 

the initial construction and before the litigation was filed by: 

1. 	 Separating the French drain system from the gutter/down spout system; 
Appendix Vol 3, pg 3238, Gebhardt depo, line 18 to pg. 3239, line 12; 
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2. 	 Waterproofing the brick veneer 3 times in 3 years before the litigation was filed; 
Appendix Vol 3, pg 3116, Gebhardt depo. line 12 to pg. 3117, line 5. 

3. 	 Had basement carpeting relaid after it had been taken up to dry after water 
intrusion soaked it; Appendix Vol 3, pg 3130, Gebhardt depo. line 24 to pg. 3131, 
line 3 

4. 	 Digging to uncover the Tuff-N-Dry foundation waterproofing, removing some to 
inspect it and sealed the destroyed parts with tar; Appendix Vol 3, pg 3168, 
Gebhardt depo. lines 11 - 14. Pictures of tar, Appendix Vol 3, pg 2101-2102 

5. 	 Adding the cantilever closets down spout systems; Appendix Vol 3, pg 3170, 
Gebhardt depo. lines 9 - 14; 

6. 	 Adding extensions to the Northwest and Southwest comer down spouts to discharge 
out into the yard away from the house; Appendix. Vol 3, pg 3198, Gebhardt depo. 
lines 14 - 22; 

7. 	 Doing water hose tests on the brick veneer with Kenneth Smith assisting him to alert 
him when water began to infiltrate into the basement; Appendix Vol 3, pg 3201, 
Gebhardt depo. , lines 11 - 19. 

8. 	 Inspecting the home with a representative from Baker's Waterproofing; Appendix 
Vol 3, pg 3215, Gebhardt depo. ,lines 1 - 3. 

9. 	 Appling silicone caulking to vinyl siding; Appendix Vol 3, pg 3228, Gebhardt depo. 
lines 15 - 19. 

10. 	 Disassembled and reassembled sections of the vinyl siding for inspection; 
11. 	 Purchased Dry Lock white paint to cover water stains on basement cement block 

walls (which Petitioners refused); Appendix Vol 5, pg 9545 photo of Dry Lock. 
12. 	 Advised Petitioners to place screen over the away drain for the French drain 

system to keep out snakes (Respondent Gebhardt denies). Appendix Vol 3, 
pg 3755, Terri Smith depo . lines 2-8: Ken Smith Affidavit Appendix V 012, pg 1522. 

The water intrusion continued. Petitioners contacted th.eir present counsel, Ronald Wm. 

Kasserman, who sent Respondent Gebhardt a certified mail letter dated March 25,2013, outlining 

several problems, including the wet basement walls and requesting that they be cured to avoid 

litigation. Appendix Vol 1, pg 300-302. 

On April 9, 2013, Respondent Gebhardt met with Petitioner Terri Smith and Petitioners' 

counsel to inspect the home and discuss the complaints. Due to Petitioner Terri Smith's concerns 

about prior misunderstandings with or misrepresentations by Respondent Gebhardt, attorney 

Kasserman recorded the conversation as permitted by West Virginia Code, § 62-ID-3(e) without 
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advising Respondent Gebhardt. Respondent Gebhardt agreed to try to resolve some of the 

complaints about the home. Appendix Vol 6, pg 6854 has a DVD-R of the recording attached. 

Petitioners filed their Complaint with the Trial Court on September 27, 20l3.Appendix 1, pg 129. 

The screen over the away drain was not hidden and Respondent Gebhardt's counsel was 

permitted to informally inspect and take photographs ofthe premises twice, on December 19, 2013 

and February 18,2014. See Appendix Vol 5, pg 5186-5204 for Respondent Gebhardt's counsel's 

photographs. The recording of the conversation with Respondent Gebhardt was voluntarily 

disclosed to Respondents' counsel in discovery. 

Jake Lammott of Ground Penetrating Radar Systems, Inc. used a radar scanner that did not 

alter the walls whatsoever to locate the hollow portions of the walls and marked them with orange 

painted lines. Photographs of the orange painted lines are in Appendix Vol 6, pg 6616-6622. 

Over 123 pictures taken before the orange painted lines were made on the unfinished block 

walls in the basement showing wetness/staining and covering a period of three (3) years were 

delivered to Respondent Gebhardt's counsel before his expert causation engineer, Eric Drozdowski, 

P.E., formally inspected the home on October 19,2014. See Appendix Vol 6,pg 5993-5998, 6000

6005,6051-6054,6065-6068,6070-6073,6082-6087,6089,6091-6093,6096,6097,6100,6134

6126,6139,6147-6149,6153-6167,6170,6171,6174,6175,6183-6185,6197-6199. 

In November, 2014 Petitioners counsel had an independent bricklayer remove 16 Y2 bricks 

from and approximate 2 feet by 2 feet area of the veneer wall. Appendix Vol 4, pg 4984 photo of 

bricks stacked in place. Appendix 5, pg 54585 bricks removed photo. The removal shows 

unequivocally that there was less than a 1 inch air space between the brick veneer wall and the 

underlying structural interior wall, no flashing between the lower concrete block foundation and 

first layer of brick and no weep holes, all of which are required by the building standards to create 
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a dry "envelope" for homes with a brick veneer exterior walls. Appendix Vol 5, pg 5477-5491. 

Bricklayer Respondents, Michael Coyne and Triple S&D, Inc. were then added as defendants 

to the lawsuit by February 17, 2015. Appendix Vol 1, pg 43 &496. 

Respondents, Michael Coyne's and Triple S&D, Inc.'sexpert causation engineer, Lorey 

Caldwell, P.E., formally inspected the home on March 16, 2015, and noted, "All ofthe sawn control 

joints in the floor slab were filled with water, and standing water was observed in severeallocations 

on the basement floor slab." Appendix Vol 5, pg 5271. 

Respondent Gebhardt has expressly admitted there has been water intrusion for years. 

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Trial Court's Order awarding the sanction of dismissal was an abuse of discretion as 

it was based on an erroneous view of the law concerning notice for service of trial subpoenas; an 

erroneous view of the law regarding the one-party consent rule for legal audio recording of 

conversations; an erroneous view of the law regarding utilization of the opposing party's expert; 

an erroneous assessment of the evidence regarding water damage by failing to consider testimony 

about water intrusion, including but not limited to Respondent Gebhardt's admissions that it existed 

before any alleged adverse actions by Petitioners; erroneous assessment ofthe photographic evidence 

regarding water damage three (3) years before and over three (3) years after any alleged adverse 

actions by Petitioners; and failing to consider many serious mitigating circumstances specified 

particularly herein. 

Accordingly, the Trial Court's Order dismissing the case should be reversed and the case 

remanded for trial. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Petitioners, Terri Smith and Kenneth Smith, by counsel, believe that the decisional process 
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would be significantly aided by oral argument. Petitioners' counsel requests oral argument pursuant 

to Rule 19(a)(1) as this case involves assignments of error in the application of settled law, pursuant 

to Rule 19(a)(2) as there was an unsustainable exercise of discretion where the law governing 

discretion is settled and pursuant to Rule 19(a)(3) as there was insufficient evidence for dismissal 

or dismissal was against the weight of the evidence. 

ARGUMENT 

STANDARDS OF REVIEW 

(R)eview in this case is the imposition of sanctions by the lower court, to which we apply 
an abuse of discretion standard. See Bartles v. Hinkle, 196 W.Va. 381, 389, 472 S.E.2d 
827,835 (1996) (" 'A primary aspect of... [a trial court's] discretion is the ability to fashion 
an appropriate sanction for conduct that abuses the judicial process.' Chambers v. 
NASCO.Inc., 501 U.S. 32,44-45, 111 S.Ct. 2123, 2132-2133, 115 LED.2d 27,45(1991)." 
(Bracketed language and emphasis in original.». 

State ex rei. Richmond American Homes of West Virginia. Inc. v. Sanders, 226 W.Va. 103,697 
S.E.2d 139, 146 (2010) . 

Coxv. State, 184 W.Va. 210, 218, n. 3, 460 S.E.2d25, 33 n.3 (1995)(concurringopinion, 
Justice Cleckley, stating sanctions are reviewable under an abuse of discretions standard, 
"but it is clear that a circuit court abuses its discretion if it bases its ruling on an erroneous 
assessment of the evidence or an erroneous view of the law."). 

Murthv v. Karpacs-Brown, 237 W.Va. 490, 788 S.E.2d 18,25 (2016). See also Bartles v. Hinkle, 
196 W.Va. 381, 389, 472 S.E.2d 827,835 (1996). 

Imposition ofsanctions ofdismissal and default judgment for serious litigation misconduct 
pursuant to the inherent powers ofthe court to regulate its proceedings will be upheld upon 
review as a proper exercise ofdiscretion when trial court findings adequately demonstrate 
and establish willfulness, bad faith or fault of the offending party." 

Syl. Pt. 7, State ex rei. RichmondAmerican Homes ofWest Virginia, Inc. v. Sanders, 226 W.Va, 
103,697 S.E.2d 139(2010). 

In fonnulating the appropriate sanction, a court shall be guided by equitable principles. 
Initially, the court must identify the alleged wrongful conduct and determine if it warrants 
a sanction. The court must explain its reasons clearly on the record if it decides a sanction 
is appropriate. To detennine what will constitute an appropriate sanction, the court may 
consider the seriousness of the conduct, the impact the conduct had in the case and in the 
administration ofjustice, any mitigating circumstances, and whether the conduct was an 
isolated occurrence or was a pattern of wrongdoing throughout the case. 
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would be significantly aided by oral argument. Petitioners' counsel requests oral argument pursuant 

to Rule 19(a)(1) as this case involves assignments of error in the application of settled law, pursuant 

to Rule 19(a)(2) as there was an unsustainable exercise of discretion where the law governing 

discretion is settled and pursuant to Rule 19(a)(3) as there was insufficient evidence for dismissal 

or dismissal was against the weight of the evidence. 

ARGUMENT 

STANDARDS OF REVIEW 

(R)eview in this case is the imposition of sanctions by the lower court, to which we apply 
an abuse of discretion standard. See Bartles v. Hinkle, 196 W.Va. 381, 389, 472 S.E.2d 
827,835 (1996) (" 'A primary aspect of ... [a trial court's] discretion is the ability to fashion 
an appropriate sanction for conduct that abuses the judicial process.' Chambers v. 
NASCO.Inc., 501 U.S. 32,44-45, 111 S.Ct. 2123,2132-2133, 115 LED.2d 27,45(1991)." 
(Bracketed language and emphasis in original.)). 

State ex reI. Richmond American Homes of West Virginia. Inc. v. Sanders, 226 W.Va. 103,697 
S.E.2d 139, 146 (2010) . 

Coxv. State, 184 W.Va. 210, 218, n. 3, 460 S.E.2d25, 33 n.3 (1995) (concurring opinion, 
Justice Cleckley, stating sanctions are reviewable under an abuse of discretions standard, 
"but it is clear that a circuit court abuses its discretion if it bases its ruling on an erroneous 
assessment of the evidence or an erroneous view of the law."). 

Murthy v. Karpacs-Brown, 237 W.Va. 490, 788 S.E.2d 18,25 (2016). See also Bartles v. Hinkle, 
196 W.Va. 381, 389,472 S.E.2d 827, 835 (1996). 

Imposition ofsanctions ofdismissal and default judgment for serious litigation misconduct 
pursuant to the inherent powers ofthe court to regulate its proceedings will be upheld upon 
review as a proper exercise of discretion when trial court fmdings adequately demonstrate 
and establish willfulness, bad faith or fault of the offending party." 

Syl. Pt. 7, State ex reI. Richmond American Homes ofWest Virginia. Inc. v. Sanders, 226 W.Va. 
103,697 S.E.2d 139(2010). 

In formulating the appropriate sanction, a court shall be gu.ided by equitable principles. 
Initially, the court must identify the alleged wrongful conduct and determine if it warrants 
a sanction. The court must explain its reasons clearly on the record if it decides a sanction 
is appropriate. To determine what will constitute an appropriate sanction, the court may 
consider the seriousness of the conduct, the impact the conduct had in the case and in the 
administration of justice, any mitigating circumstances, and whether the conduct was an 
isolated occurrence or was a pattern of wrongdoing throughout the case. 
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Syl. Pt 2, Bartles v. Hinkle, 196 W.Va. 381,389,472 S.E.2d 827 (1996). 

Under the provisions of syllabus point two ofBartles, our review actually involves a two
step process of first examining whether the sanctioning court identified the wrongful 
conduct with clear explanation on the record of why it decided that a sanction was 
appropriate. 196 W.Va. at 384, 472 S.E.2d at 830. We then must determine whether the 
sanction actually imposed fits the seriousness ofthe identifiedconduct in light ofthe impact 
the conduct had in the case and the administration of justice, any mitigating circumstances, 
and with due consideration given to whether the conduct was an isolated occurrence or a 
pattern ofwrongdoing. Id. 

State ex rei. RichmondAmerican Homes ofWest Virginia. Inc. v. Sanders, 226 W.Va. 103,697 
S.E.2d 139, 149 (2010) . 

As was stated in Cattrell Cos. V. Carlton, Inc., 217 W.Va. 1, 14,614 S.E.2d 1, 14 (2005), 
"dismissal and default [judgment] are [considered] drastic sanctions that should be imposed 
only in extreme circumstances." See also, Doulamis v. Alpine Lake Prop. Owners Ass 'n, 
Inc., 184 W.Va. 107, 112,399 S.E.2d 689, 694 (1990) (stating that "dismissal, the harshest 
sanction, should be used sparingly and only after other sancti()ns have failed to bring about 
compliance."); Bell v. Inland Mut. Ins. Co., 175 W.Va. at 172,332 S.E.2d at 134 (1985) 
(advising that the sanction of default judgment "should be Ilsed sparingly and only in 
extreme situations [in order to effectuate] the policy of the law favoring the disposition of 
cases on their merits."). 

State ex rei. Richmond American Homes of West Virginia, Inc. v. Sanders, 226 W.Va. 103,697 
S.E.2d 139,149 (2010). 

Ofcourse, dismissing an action is extremely severe. We have suggested that such a harsh 
sanction would be used as a last resort, and that the party facing the sanction should have 
had fair warning that such a severe punishment was in the offing: 

Further, in almost any conceivable set of circumstances, a circuit court's failure to (1) warn 
of an impeding ultimate sanction, or (2) consider less serious onerous sanctions before 
dismissing the case would amount to reversible error. Hathc()ck'V. Navistar Int'l Transp. 
Corp., 53 F.3rd 36,40-41 (4th Cir. 1995); See Cox 'V. Department ofNatural Resources, 
Nos. 22484 and 22485, 194 W.Va. 210, 460 S.E 2d 25 (1995) (Cleckley, J., concurring). 

Woolwine 'V. Raleigh Gen. Hosp.,194 W.Va. 22,228 N.8, 460 S.E. 2d 457,463 N.8 (1995) 
(per curiam) 

Mills v. Davis, 211 W.Va. 569, 567 S.E.2d 285, 292 (2002). 

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

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