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

V. ARGUMENT 

Petitioners state only one actual "assignment of error" in their brief, alleging that the 

question before this Court is: 

Whether the trial court abused its discretion in granting Respondent Gebhardt's 
Motion to Dismiss as a sanction for serious litigation misconduct and spoliation of 
evidence by Petitioners and Petitioners' counsel and dismissing the case against not 
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only Respondent Gebhardt but also Respondents Michael Coyne and Triple S&D, 
Inc., who took no position on the Motion to Dismiss. 

Pet'rs' Brief, "Assignments of Error," p. 1. This lone assignment of error is significantly 

different than the series ofalleged errors set forth in Petitioners' initial Notice ofAppeal, and also 

does not correspond with the list ofalleged "abuses ofdiscretion" alleged in Petitioners' Summary 

of Argument. Pet'rs' Brief, "Summary of Argument," p. 6. By rule, Respondent's Brief "must 

specifically respond to each assignment a/error, to the fullest extent possible." W. Va. R. App. P. 

1O(b) (emphasis added). As it is unclear as to what alleged "errors" Petitioners are actually 

claiming, Respondent will attempt to respond to the actual assignment of error, and address 

Petitioners' issues in the "Summary ofArgument" to the best extent possible. 

a. 	 The lower court followed proper legal procedure in dismissing the case as a sanction for 
litigation misconduct and spoliation of evidence under its inherent powers. 

i. 	 Courts have the inherent power to control their own docket independent of any specific 
statute or rule. 

Courts are vested with the inherent power to control their own docket; "[a] court 'has 

inherent power to do all things that are reasonably necessary for the administration ofjustice within 

the scope ofits jurisdiction.' 14 Am. Juris., Courts, section 171." SyL Pt. 3, Shields v. Romine, 122 

W. Va. 639, 13 S.E.2d 16 (1940). As part of that power, the lower court has the ability to sanction 

attorney or party misconduct and to enter a default judgment. State ex. reI. Richmond American 

Homes a/West Virginia, Inc. v. Sanders, 223 W. Va. 103, 113,697 S.E.2d 139 (2010); see also 

Shepherd v. American Broadcasting Companies, Inc., 62 F.3d 1469, 1474-1475 (D.C.Cir.1995). 

The West Virginia Supreme Court explicitly held in Richmond that: 

[I]mposition of sanctions of dismissal and default judgment for serious litigation 
misconduct pursuant to the inherent powers of the court to regulate its proceedings 
will be upheld upon review as a proper exercise of discretion when trial court 
findings adequately demonstrate and establish willfulness, bad faith or fault of the 
offending party. 
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Id at 113, S.E.2d at 149. 

To determine whether a sanction of dismissal or default judgment is appropriate, the trial 

court must follow the test set forth in Bartles v. Hinkle, 196 W. Va. 381,472 S.E.2d 827 (1996), 

as follows: 

Initially, the court must identify the alleged wrongful conduct and determine if it 
warrants a sanction. The court must explain its reasons clearly on the record if it 
decides a sanction is appropriate. To determine what will constitute an appropriate 
sanction, the court may consider the seriousness of the conduct, the impact the 
conduct had in the case and in the administration of justice, any mitigating 
circumstances, and whether the conduct was an isolated occurrence or was a pattern 
of wrongdoing throughout the case. 

Id at 384, S.E.2d at 830 (1996). 

When reviewing the trial court's decision, the Supreme Court must "first examin[e] 

whether the sanctioning conduct identified the wrongful conduct with clear explanation on the 

record of why it decided a sanction was appropriate." Richmond at 114, S.E.2d at 149; 

summarizing Bartles at 384, S.E.2d at 830. It must then determine whether the sanction imposed 

"fits the seriousness of the identified conduct in light ofthe impact the conduct had in the case and 

the administration of justice, any mitigating circumstances, and with due consideration given to 

whether the conduct was an isolated occurrence or a pattern of wrongdoing." Id Here, the lower 

court found, with sound reasoning based on the entire case, as well as a specific evidentiary 

hearing, that the Petitioners committed such wrongdoing and specifically pointed each instance of 

said wrongdoing out in its Order, as mandated by Bartles and Richmond. It also found that the 

totality of the evidence required the dismissal of Petitioners' case. Importantly, the lower court 

found that the conduct at issue affected "the case," not just Gebhardt individually. There is no law 

that would support a conclusion that corrupted evidence and untruthful expert disclosures which 

prejudice multiple parties are somehow cleansed by a finding that some of the affected parties did 
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not move for sanctions themselves. To hold otherwise would encourage mayhem in the litigation 

process. 

The lower court followed the letter and the intent of the law, and there is no compelling 

reason for this Court to set aside the lower court's decision. 

ii. 	 Petitioners have confused discovery-based sanctions under W. Va. R. Civ. P. 37 with 
the Court's inherent power to issue sanctions, and Petitioners are not guaranteed, or 
deserving of, warnings for misconduct. 

The Richmond Court specified that it had not "previously addressed whether and under 

what circumstances a court may impose a default judgment as a sanction pursuant to the 'inherent 

power [of a court] to do all things that are reasonably necessary for the administration of justice 

within the scope of its jurisdiction,'" and that it was therefore a matter of first impression. 

Richmond at 111, S.E.2d at 147 (internal citations omitted). However, Petitioners supply, as part 

of their "Standards ofReview," a series of pre-Richmond cases and various dicta from Richmond 

itself therein that are not actually part of the judicial review process in this matter. Pet'rs' Brief, 

"Standards of Review," p 8. The implication of Petitioners' carefully pruned citations is, 

essentially, that they were owed a warning or a lesser sanction before the lower Court dismissed 

their case. 

Petitioners' argument that a warning or lesser sanction is only implied never actually 

developed by Petitioners. Perhaps this is because such an argument is not actually supported by 

the plain text of Richmond, nor is the language in those decisions seemingly mandating that the 

circuit court warn of impending dismissal sanctions targeted at proceedings like the ones at issue 

in this matter. 
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No part ofRichmond states that a circuit court must warn ofup corning sanctions to use its 

inherent sanctioning authority. Rather, the Richmond court specifically sets forth the court's 

powers and responsibilities: 

The inherent power of courts to sanction also provides courts with a means to 
impose sanctions fashioned to address unique problems which may not be 
addressed within the rules. Following this reasoning we find that the inherent power 
of courts to sanction misconduct includes the authority to enter default judgment 
orders in appropriate circumstances. 

Id. at 112, S.E.2d at 148. 

As above, all that is required of the lower court is that it produce findings which 

"adequately demonstrate and establish willfulness, bad faith or fault of the offending party." Id. at 

113, S.E.2d at 149. 

[I]mposition of sanctions of dismissal and default judgment for serious litigation 
misconduct pursuant to the inherent powers ofthe court to regulate its proceedings 
will be upheld upon review as a proper exercise of discretion when trial court 
findings adequately demonstrate and establish willfulness, bad faith or fault of the 
offending party. 

Accordingly, all that the lower court is required to do is "adequately demonstrate and 

establish willfulness, bad faith, or fault of the offending party." Petitioner cites, via discussion in 

Richmond, Doulamis v. Alpine Lake Prop. Owners Ass'n, Inc., 184 w. Va. 107, 112,399 S.E.2d 

689, 694 (1990), for the argument that dismissal should only be used "after other sanctions have 

failed to bring about compliance." Richmond at 139, S.E.2d at 149. There are myriad problems 

with this citation. Most obviously, Petitioners' disagreement with the lower court over the severity 

ofthe conduct, or their claim to some right to a warning, does not meet Petitioners' burden to show 

the lower court abused its discretion in dismissing the case. 

First, Petitioners were warned, repeatedly, about spoliation issues. Petitioners' water 

intrusion tests were barred. Appx. Vol. 1, p. 112. Petitioners' removal ofbrick triggered a probable 
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adverse jury instruction. Appx. Vol. 1, p. 100. Petitioners had expert witness testimony excluded 

for inaccuracy or failure to conform with expert disclosure numerous times. The court deferred 

ruling on other specific spoliation-based sanctions pending the trial. Appx. Vol. 1, pp. 12-15; see, 

e.g., Appx. Vol. 1, pp. 85, 87, 89, 92, 102, 105, and 114. Defendants filed a plethora ofdispositive 

motions to strike, for summary judgment, for dismissal, and, most importantly, for sanctions. See, 

e.g., Appx. Vols. 1 and 2. Conversations like the following took place: 

2 MR. KASSERI4AN; We can schedule that however 

3 -- really, if we I re gOinq to look at the house, and I 

~ have been admonished by the Court for busting up my wee 

5 little portion, a 2-foot-by-2-foot area -- um -- that 

6 has really good eVidence, and no o:ne has -- no expert 

"] has said that' 8 bad evidence, or that anything that was 

8 taken out. What's left is what you can see that hasctt 

9 been demolished, and if you hadn't -- it we hadn't done 

10 that, then the negligence would have been --

II THE COORT; All you have to do i. 91 ve them 

12 notice_ 

13 MR. ~~SSERMAN. -- coveted over_ 

14 THE COURT: You had a pending lawsuit. 

15 You 1 re qoinq to do that, just give them notice. You can 

16 do that. 

MR. KASSER~N: I -- I· made a mistake. 

L8 THE COORT: All right_ All right. I'll be 

L9 in touch. 

Appx. Vol. 2, p. 2270. 

Moreover, Plaintiff's apparent reliance on Doulamis is misplaced. Doulamis is a case about 

failure to respond to discovery requests pursuant to W. Va. R. Civ. P. 37, not the inherent 

sanctioning power ofthe circuit court. There were also mitigating circumstances in that matter due 

to a delay in Doulamis' ability to acquire medical records from the U.S. Army or the Veteran's 

Administration. Doulamis at 112, S.E.2d at 694. The facts ofthis case are not remotely comparable 

with the instant case. There is no allegation of witness tampering, party intimidation, improper 

communication, evidence tampering, or submission of improper experts in Doulamis. As the 
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Doulamis holding is not factually or legally relevant to the circuit court's decision in this matter, 

it is not part of the "standard of review" in this matter and must be ignored. 

Similarly, Mills v. Davis, 211 W. Va. 569, 576, 567 S.E.2d 285,292 (2002), is also a W. 

Va. R. Civ. P. 37 dismissal case, not one where sanctions are administered through the inherent 

power ofthe Court. In Mills, the plaintiff missed his !ME appointment. Defendants failed to move 

to compel and therefore did not meet the requirements for W. Va. R. Civ. P. 37. The facts ofMills 

do not compare to the facts of this case, and the law deals with a different type of sanction. Mills 

is similarly not relevant to the instant case. 

More apropos to the instant case, though still a W. Va. R. Civ. P. 37 case, is Woolwine v. 

Raleigh General Hosp., 194 W. Va. 322,460 S.E.2d 457 (1995). There, the Court explained that 

even though discovery sanctions generally require a warning, the court "characterize [ d] 

Appellant's counsel's egregious pattern of neglect as an exception to the rule," and upheld a 

dismissal sanction. Notably, in Woolwine, the plaintiff "merely" failed to participate in discovery 

because he was dilatory with discovery and expert witness disclosures, and failed to comply with 

an order of the court. Id. at 325-327, S.E.2d at 460-462. Here, the lower court found that 

Petitioners, and Petitioners' counsel, "acted knowingly, willfully, and intentionally," and that 

"Plaintiffs have actively engaged in manipulation and spoliation ofevidence in this matter." Appx. 

Vol. 1, p. 27, ~ 1. See also Kocher v. Oxford Life Ins. Co., 216 W. Va. 56, 602 S.E.2d 499 (2004) 

(striking all defenses and granting summary judgment to Kocher, without a warning). 

While Richmond, to some extent, was an issue of first impression for this Court, federal 

courts are quite clear on the lower court's ability to levy dismissal as a sanction. "[W]e recognize 

here that when a party deceives a court or abuses the process at a level that is utterly inconsistent 

with the orderly administration ofjustice or undermines the integrity of the process, the court has 
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the inherent power to dismiss the action." United States v. Shaffer Equip. Co., 11 F.3d 450,462 

(4th Cir. 1993). The United States Supreme Court has explained clearly that applying the Rules of 

Civil Procedure, and their appurtenant requirements, to the use of a court's inherent powers is 

incorrect: 

Much ofthe bad-faith conduct by Chambers, however, was beyond the reach ofthe 
Rules; his entire course of conduct throughout the lawsuit evidenced bad faith and 
an attempt to perpetrate a fraud on the court, and the conduct sanctionable under 
the Rules was intertwined within conduct that only the inherent power could 
address. In circumstances such as these in which all of a litigant's conduct is 
deemed sanctionable, requiring a court first to apply Rules and statutes 
containing sanctioning provisions to discrete occurrences before invoking 
inherent power to address remaining instances of sanctionable conduct would 
serve only to foster extensive and needless satellite litigation, which is contrary 
to the aim of the Rules themselves. 

Chambers v. NASCa, Inc., 501 U.S. 32, 50-51 (1991) (emphasis added).3 

In the matter sub judice, the lower court was in no way required to apply ad hoc court

fashioned rules akin to W. Va. R. Civ. P. 37 discovery violations to sanction conduct under its 

inherent powers. Here, Petitioners admitted to conduct deemed to be spoliation of evidence by 

watering their home's foundation, destructing brick, blocking their own away drain (and then 

removing the blockage), and performing bannister and mold tests without consulting any 

Respondent or Respondent's counsel. The Court also found that Petitioners and their attorney filed 

"untruthful and inaccurate" expert disclosures, improperly recorded Respondent Gebhardt, 

3 Federal courts are generally required to consider the following factors when invoking inherent powers: (1) the degree 
ofthe wrongdoer's culpability; (2) the extent ofthe client's blameworthiness if the wrongful conduct is committed by 
its attorney, recognizing that we seldom dismiss claims against blameless clients; (3) the prejudice to the judicial 
process and the administration ofjustice; (4) the prejudice to the victim; (5) the availability ofother sanctions to rectify 
the wrong by punishing culpable persons, compensating harmed persons, and deterring similar conduct in the future; 
and (6) the public interest. United States v. Shaffer Equip. Co., 11 F.3d 450,462-63 (4th Cir. 1993). 

Here, the lower court, though it only had to meet the Richmond standard and, somewhat obviously, was not 
bound by federal law, specifically explained that Plaintiffs and Plaintiffs' counsel were both culpable in this matter, 
that the totality of their activities prejudiced Defendants and the judicial process, and that other sanctions were not 
necessary. The lower court went above and beyond the Richmond and Bartles requirements in dismissing this action. 
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improperly communicated with Respondent Gebhardt's witness, and improperly contacted 

Respondent Gebhardt through a third party without notice to Gebhardt's counseL See generally 

Appx., VoL 1, pp. 1-27. 

The sheer volume and diversity of misconduct in this matter makes Petitioners' 

insinuations that they were somehow owed warnings, lesser sanctions, or other precursors to 

sanctioned dismissal is unreasonable and unsupported by any rule. The lower court had no 

obligation under Richmond to, for example, issue warnings, exclude evidence, issue a series of 

adverse instructions to the jury, micromanage irrelevant or incorrect deposition testimony, or

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